
 

City of Quincy 
 

City Hall 
 

404 West Jefferson Street 

Quincy, Florida 32351  

www.myquincy.net 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
 
 
 

 
 

COMMISSION MEETING 
 

Tuesday, November 23, 2021  
6:00 PM 

 

City Hall Commission Chambers 
 

 

City Commission 
Mayor Ronte R. Harris - District III 

Mayor Pro-Tem Keith A. Dowdell - District I  
Commissioner Angela G. Sapp - District II 

Commissioner Freida Bass-Prieto - District IV 
Commissioner Anessa A. Canidate - District V 

 
 

 
 

“An All American City in the Heart of Florida’s Future” 
 

http://www.myquincy.net/


Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 
 
 

City of Quincy, Florida 
City Commission Meeting 

 

 AMENDED AGENDA   
 

November 23, 2021 
6:00 P.M. 

 

City Hall Commission Chambers  
 
Call to Order 
 
Invocation 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call 
 
Approval of Agenda 
 
Special Presentations 
 
Proclamations 
 
Items for Consent by the Commission 
1. Approval of Minutes of the November 9, 2021 Regular Meeting 

• Janice Shackelford, City Clerk   
 
 

Public Hearings and Ordinances as Scheduled or Agendaed 
 

Public Opportunity to Speak on Commission Propositions – (Pursuant to 
Sec. 286.0114, Fla. Stat. and subject to the limitations of Sec. 
286.0114(3)(a), Fla. Stat.) 
 
Resolutions 
2. Resolution 1416-2021 Christmas Parade Road Closure 

• Jack L. McLean Jr., City Manager 
• Timothy Ashley, Police Chief 

 
3. Resolution 1417-2021 Rescission of Commission November 9, 2021 Vote 

• Jack L. McLean Jr., City Manager 
• Gary A. Roberts, City Attorney 

 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 

Reports, Requests and Communications by the City Manager 
 

Reports by Boards and Committees 
 

Other Items Requested to Be Agendaed by Commission Member(s), the 
City Manager and Other City Officials 
4. Toys for Tots 

• Jack L. McLean Jr., City Manager 
• Mayor Ronte R. Harris, District 3 

 
5. Revenues and Unfunded Items 

• Jack L. McLean Jr., City Manager 
• Commissioner Freida Bass-Prieto, District 4 

 
Comments 

■ City Manager   
■ City Clerk  
■ City Attorney   
■ Commission Members 

 

Comments from the Audience 
 

Adjournment 
 

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the City Commission with respect to any matter 
considered at this meeting, he/she may need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose, he/she 
may need to ensure that verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  FS 286.0105. Persons with disabilities 
who require assistance to participate in City meetings are requested to notify the City Clerk’s Office at 
(850) 618-0020 in advance. 



Page 1 of 19 
 

CITY COMMISSION    REGULAR MEETING                   
Tuesday, November 9, 2021      QUINCY, FLORIDA 32351 
6:10 P.M. (Eastern) 
 
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  

The City of Quincy City Commission met in a regular in-person meeting on Tuesday, 

November 9, 2021, with Mayor Ronte Harris presiding and the following 

Commissioners present: 

Mayor Pro-Tem Keith A. Dowdell   
Commissioner Angela G. Sapp   
Commissioner Freida Bass-Prieto 
Commissioner Anessa A. Canidate  

 
City Staff and Guests: 
      Jack L. McLean Jr., City Manager 
      Marcia Carty, Finance Director 

Gary Roberts, City Attorney 
Janice Shackelford Clemons, City Clerk  
DeCody Fagg, Parks and Recreations Director 
Reggie Bell, Public Works Director  
Ann Sherman, Director of Human Resources and Customer Service 
Anthony Baker, Fire Chief 
Vancheria Starling, Executive Assistant to the City Manager 
Robin Ryals, Utilities Director 
Charles Hayes, Procurement Officer 
Jim Southerland Sr., WQTN-13 Administrator 
Timothy Ashley, Police Chief  

          
The regular in-person meeting was recorded, televised, and transmitted through TV 
Channel (WQTN-13) and Facebook. (Note: Digital formatted documents/media are 
public records.) 

 
Called to Order: 

 
Mayor Ronte Harris called the regular Commission meeting to order at 6:10 pm. Mayor 
Ronte Harris led out in the reciting of the pledge of allegiance and requested a roll call.  
 
Approval of Agenda 
 
Mayor Harris offered a motion to add the Fuel Adjustment as item #11 and American 
Rescue Act as item #12 to the amended agenda. Commissioner Canidate seconded the 
motion.  
 
Commissioner Bass-Prieto asked if there was any information on the items added to the 
amended agenda. Mayor Harris presented two emails on Category Z and the Fuel 
Adjustment.  Mayor Harris stated that he’s resubmitting his proposal on the American 
Rescue Act presented to the Commission several meetings ago.   
 



Page 2 of 19 
 

Commissioner Bass-Prieto stated that every Commissioner should be allowed to make 
proposals and bring them to the dais. Commissioner Bass-Prieto suggested scheduling 
a special meeting for the American Rescue Act.  
 
Mayor Harris stated that he would like to discuss the forfeiture fund email during 
comments. 
 

Commissioner Vote 
Mayor Harris Yes 

Commissioner Sapp  No 
Commissioner Bass-Prieto     No 

Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell Yes 
Commissioner Canidate  Yes 

 
 

The Motion Carried 3 to 2. 

 
Public Hearings and Ordinances as Scheduled or Agendaed 
 
None 
 
Special Presentations  
 
Introduction of New Police of Chief 
 

• Jack L. McLean Jr., City Manager 
 
Summary of the Discussion by Staff and the Commission 

City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. formally introduced the City of Quincy’s New Police 
Chief Timothy Ashley. 
 
Mayor Harris thanked Chief Ashley for his willingness to serve the City of Quincy and 
looked forward to working with him. 
 
The entire Commission extended a hearty welcome to Police Chief Timothy Ashley.  
 
Proclamations 
 
None 
 
Items for Consent by the Commission  

1. Approval of Minutes of the October 19, 2021, Special Meeting  

• Janice Shackelford, City Clerk  

2. Approval of Minutes of the October 26, 2021, Regular Meeting  

• Janice Shackelford, City Clerk  



Page 3 of 19 
 

3. Approval of Minutes of the November 2, 2021, Special Meeting   

• Janice Shackelford, City Clerk   

4. City of Quincy Special Event Kit  

• Jack L. McLean Jr., City Manager 
• DeCody Fagg, Parks and Recreation Director  

5. Exceleron Pay Options 

• Jack L. McLean Jr., City Manager 
• Ann Sherman, Human Resources Director 

Summary of the Discussion by Staff and the Commission 

Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell offered a motion to approve the items for consent. Commissioner 
Canidate seconded the motion. 

Commissioner Sapp requested to pull item #3, Approval of Minutes of November 2, 
2021, Special Meeting. 

Mayor Harris requested to pull item #4, City of Quincy Special Event Kit. 

Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell amended his motion to approve items numbers 1, 2, and 5 on 
the consent agenda, pulling items #3 and #4. Commissioner Canidate seconded the 
motion.   

 Commissioner Vote 
Mayor Harris Yes 

Commissioner Sapp  Yes 
Commissioner Bass-Prieto     Yes 

Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell Yes 
Commissioner Canidate  Yes 

 
 

The Motion Carried 5 to 0. 

Item #3: Approval of Minutes of the November 2, 2021, Special Meeting   

Commissioner Sapp asked for clarification on the term members present during a 
commission meeting.  

City Attorney Gary Roberts stated to be physically present or the appearance by 
telephone or media device.  

Commissioner Sapp stated that City Clerk Janice Shackelford was not present during 
the meeting the special meeting.   

Mayor Harris stated that the clerk was late for the meeting. Mayor Harris stated that he 
took notes during the first part of the meeting until the clerk arrived.  

Commissioner Sapp offered a motion to approve item number  3. Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell 
seconded the motion.  



Page 4 of 19 
 

Commissioner Vote 
Mayor Harris Yes 

Commissioner Sapp  Yes 
Commissioner Bass-Prieto     Yes 

Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell Yes 
Commissioner Canidate  Yes 

 
 

The Motion Carried 5 to 0. 

Item #2: Approval of Minutes of the October 26, 2021, Regular Meeting  

City Attorney Gary Roberts requested the clerk to clarify his comments during the 
October 26 meeting; during the discussion of the city manager’s $10,000 authority. City 
Attorney Gary Roberts stated that his statement should read the city manager’s $10,000 
limitation is only for procurement and does not apply to temporary employment.  

Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell stated that there is not a temporary grant writer position. Mayor 
Pro Tem Dowdell stated that the city manager has a $10,000 limit. Mayor Pro Tem 
Dowdell asked for the personnel rules and regulations on temporary employment.  

City Attorney Gary Roberts stated that the city manager’s $10,000 limit is under certain 
circumstances and not in the hiring of temporary employment. City Attorney Gary 
Roberts stated that the hiring of the temporary grant writer is proper. City Attorney 
provided a procurement example of the purchase of a truck over $10,000 would come 
before the Commission; an employment matter would not.  

City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stated that the personnel rules and regulations allow 
the city manager to place a person in a temporary position. City Manager Jack L. 
McLean Jr. stated that the old grant writer was not terminated until returning to work 
after being out ill. City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stated that once the grant writer 
returned to work, she was notified of the termination.  

Mayor Harris stated that the grant writer was not out ill but indeed at work. City 
Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stated that the timesheet shows the grant writer out ill 
during the week leading up to October 1.  

Commissioner Bass-Prieto offered a motion to add a $10,000 procurement limit to City 
Attorney Gary Roberts's comment versus authority limit on page 14 of the October 26, 
2021 minutes. Commissioner Sapp seconded the motion. 

Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell stated that he’s concerned that City Attorney Gary Roberts's 
comments were not made on October 26 and should not be added in the minutes. Mayor 
Pro Tem Dowdell stated that the grant writer position was not correctly advertised.  

Commissioner Sapp stated that she remembered the procurement discussion and 
provided the dump truck example.  

 

 



Page 5 of 19 
 

Commissioner Vote 
Mayor Harris Yes 

Commissioner Sapp  Yes 
Commissioner Bass-Prieto     Yes 

Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell No 
Commissioner Canidate  Yes 

 
 

The Motion Carried 4 to 1. 

Item #4: City of Quincy Special Event Kit  
 
Mayor Harris asked if the event kit permitted the hiring of private security. 
 
City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stated that the event kit does not allow the hiring of 
private security. City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stated that the event kit is uniform 
with Tallahassee’s event policies.  City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stated that staff 
believes having sworn police officers in attendance at large events better fits the needs 
of the City.  
 
Mayor Harris stated that a policy was developed allowing individuals to hire private 
security for events.  
 
City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stated that on occasion, a substitution was made to 
allow the hiring of private security.  City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stated that the 
policy could be changed.  
 
Mayor Harris stated his displeasure with the event kit policy. Mayor Harris noted that 
his argument is to allow promoters to hire private security.  
 
Commissioner Canidate expressed her concerns with not having enough police officers 
patrolling due to the high crime rate and having them work at an event. Commissioner 
Canidate stated that the City is working too hard having to reach out to other 
municipalities. Commissioner Canidate stated that utilizing armed security is an asset.  
  
Commissioner Sapp stated that while implementing the event policy, the City did not 
have a police chief. Commissioner Sapp stated that now that Police Chief Ashley is on 
board, the Commission should turnover the event kit to him to familiarize himself with 
the Commission's concerns and the event kit and bring his opinion back to the 
Commission. Commissioner Sapp noted that Chief Ashely brings a considerable amount 
of resources on how to get things done.  
 
Commissioner Bass-Prieto asked whether the business park would still be rented out 
after the completion of the solar field.   
 
Commissioner Sapp offered a motion requesting that Chief Ashley work on the special 
event packet and address the concerns of the Commission, particularly the hiring of 



Page 6 of 19 
 

private security with Parks and Recreation Director DeCody Fagg. Mayor Pro Tem 
seconded the motion.    
 
Mayor Harris stated that the City should be fair across the board when renting facilities. 
Mayor Harris noted that he would like to see the number of police officers required at 
an event placed in the event kit. Mayor Harris stated that he would also like to see the 
option of hiring police officers or private security.  
 
Commissioner Sapp noted the concert event in Texas at the Astroworld Festival. 
Commissioner Sapp stated that the concert promoted provided private security resulting 
in a stampede leaving a nine-year-old fighting for his life and several dead.   
 
Commissioner Bass-Prieto stated that private security companies are not skilled as 
police officers. Commissioner Bass-Prieto stated that she does not take issue with 
supplementing private security companies.   
 

Commissioner Vote 
Mayor Harris Yes 

Commissioner Sapp  Yes 
Commissioner Bass-Prieto     Yes 

Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell Yes 
Commissioner Canidate  Yes 

 
 

The Motion Carried 5 to 0.  

Public Opportunity to Speak on Commission Propositions – (Pursuant to Sec. 
286.0114, Fla. Stat. and subject to the limitations of Sec. 286.0114(3)(a), Fla. 
Stat.) 

6. Ordinance Number 1124-2021 – Voluntary Annexation 
Main Street Urgent Care on Pat Thomas Parkway 
 

• Jack L. McLean Jr., City Manager 
• Charles Hayes, Interim Planning Director 

 
Ordinance No. 1124-2021 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA, RELATING TO THE 
ANNEXATION OF 1.3 ACRES OF CONTIGUOUS PROPERTY INTO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY, PROVIDING FOR AUTHORITY; PROVIDING 
FOR ANNEXATION AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION’ PROVIDING FOR A MAP OF 

ANNEXED AREA; PROVIDING FOR ZONING AND LAND USE; PROVIDING FOR 
COMPLIANCE WITH LAW; PROVIDING FOR FILING; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
Mayor Harris stated that before the Commission is Ordinance No. 1124-2021 on the 
second read.  



Page 7 of 19 
 

 
Commissioner Sapp offered a motion to read by title only Ordinance No. 1124-2021 on 
the second read.  
 
City Clerk Janice Shackelford polled the Commission to read Ordinance No. 1124-
2021.  

Commissioner Vote 
Mayor Harris Yes 

Commissioner Sapp  Yes 
Commissioner Bass-Prieto     Yes 

Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell Yes 
Commissioner Canidate  Yes 

 
 

The Motion Carried 5 to 0.  

Interim Building and Planning Director Charles Hayes stated that this is a request for 
voluntary annexation into the City of Quincy.  
 
Interim Building and Planning Director Charles Hayes stated that the proposed 
annexation area is 1730 Pat Thomas Parkway.  
  
Interim Building and Planning Director Charles Hayes stated that the proposed 
annexation meets the State’s three requirements for voluntary annexation listed in 
Section 171.044. 
 
Mayor Harris stated that this is a public hearing on Ordinance No. 1124-2021. Mayor 
Harris opened the public hearing to everyone desiring to speak on Ordinance No. 1124-
2021. Mayor Harris closed the public hearing on Ordinance No. 1124-2021 and turned 
Ordinance No. 1124-2021 to the Commission for consideration.   
 
Interim Building and Planning Director Charles Hayes stated that: 

• He spoke with some of the residents living in that area. 
• Only residents residing on Cox’s lane did not want to annex.  
•  The City would gain approximately $40,000 in tax dollars.  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell stated that some residents are reluctant and do not want the 
traffic in the area.  
 
Commissioner Sapp stated that she sees this as an opportunity for growth in the City, 
especially having two emergency facilities in the area. 
 
Commissioner Sapp stated that this would be excellent for the community in that area.  
 
Commissioner Bass-Prieto stated that she’s concerned that there is no sewer in the area. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell offered a motion to approve Ordinance No. 1124-2021 on the 
second read. Commissioner Sapp seconded the motion. 
 

Commissioner Vote 
Mayor Harris Yes 



Page 8 of 19 
 

Commissioner Sapp  Yes 
Commissioner Bass-Prieto     Yes 

Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell Yes 
Commissioner Canidate  Yes 

 
 

The Motion Carried 5 to 0 
 
City Attorney Gary Roberts stated to Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell that the City Manager 
could keep him informed about the project's progress, as long as it doesn’t interfere with 
day-to-day operations.  
 
Resolutions  
None 

Reports, Requests, and Communications by the City Manager 

7. Jacobs Contract Renewal  

• Jack L. McLean Jr., City Manager 
• Robin Ryals, Utilities Director  

8. Special Land Use Permission  

• Jack L. McLean Jr., City Manager 
• Charles Hayes, Interim Planning Director 

Summary of the Discussion by Staff and the Commission 

Item #7: Jacobs Contract Renewal   
 
Utilities Director Robin Ryals stated that the request is to increase the costs of repairs 
to the treatment plants and yearly costs of treatment in general.  
 
Utilities Director Robins Ryals stated that Jacobs is proposing an increase of 2.6% or 
$28,628.  
 
Utilities Director Robin Ryals stated that the relateable repairs would stay at $30,000.  
 
Commissioner Bass-Prieto asked if the funds were budgeted.  
 
City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stated that the funds were budgeted.  
  
Commissioner Sapp offered a motion to amend the agreed-upon cost increase to 2.6% 
or $28,628 per this contract. Commissioner Bass-Prieto seconded the motion. 

 Commissioner Vote 
Mayor Harris Yes 

Commissioner Sapp  Yes 
Commissioner Bass-Prieto     Yes 

Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell Yes 



Page 9 of 19 
 

Commissioner Canidate  Yes 
 

 

The Motion Carried 5 to 0. 

Item #8: Special Land Use Permission   
 
Commissioner Bass-Prieto stated that this item was voted on.  
 
Interim Building and Planning Director Charles Hayes stated that the request changes 
to the City’s comprehensive plan future land use map (FLUM). 
 
Interim Building and Planning Director Charles Hayes stated that the designation is 
located on East Jefferson Street. 
 
Interim Building and Planning Director Charles Hayes stated that the proposal would 
not impact the City’s public facilities and services.  
 
Interim Building and Planning Director Charles Hayes stated that the proposal was 
presented on November 1 at the Planning and Development Review Board (PDRB) 
meeting.  
 
Interim Building and Planning Director Charles Hayes stated that PDRB approved the 
proposed land-use changes.   
 
Interim Building and Planning Director Charles Hayes stated a 30-day window is needed 
to complete the process.  
 
Interim Building and Planning Director Charles Hayes stated that staff recommends 
approval on the preparation of the draft ordinance for the amendment and to provide a 
date for a public hearing.  
 
Commissioner Bass-Prieto shared her concerns about building on wetland and the 
bypass.  
 
Commissioner Sapp stated that she needs to see the actual map of the land that is being 
recommended to build.  
 
City Attorney Gary Roberts stated that out of the abundance of caution, this item should 
be tabled.  
 
City Attorney Gary Roberts stated that if there’s an issue of improper discussion, he will 
look into it.  
 
City Attorney Gary Roberts stated that the request by Interim Building and Planning 
Director Charles Hayes could be addressed without discussing the details. 
 



Page 10 of 19 
 

Mr. Strickland, an employee of the developer, stated that he’s requesting that the item 
be tabled due to no advertisement.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell offered a motion to table the agenda item. Mayor Harris 
seconded the motion.  
 
Commissioner Bass-Prieto requested that City Attorney Gary Roberts research the 
agenda item as to the current ordinance and if it was correctly done and the current 
request.  

Commissioner Vote 
Mayor Harris Yes 

Commissioner Sapp  Yes 
Commissioner Bass-Prieto     Yes 

Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell Yes 
Commissioner Canidate  Yes 

 
 

The Motion Carried 5 to 0. 

Reports by Boards and Commission 

None 

Other Items requested to Be Agendaed by Commission Member(s), the City 
Manager and Other City Officials 

9. Probationary Employees Raises 

• Mayor Ronte Harris 
 

Item #9: Probationary Employees Raises   
 
Mayor Harris stated that the Commission approved raises for non-exempt employees.  
 
Mayor Harris referenced an email sent by City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stating that 
probationary employees would not receive the raise until the completion of probation.  
 
Mayor Harris stated that he had no issue with the City's practices.  
 
Mayor Harris stated that things are brought to the Commission after an action is taken.   
 
Mayor Harris stated that there was no discussion on probationary employees not 
receiving the increase.   
 
Mayor Harris stated that the Commission should have been informed of the 
probationary employee practice. 
 
Commissioner Bass-Prieto asked if the probationary period and raise were a part of our 
handbook.  



Page 11 of 19 
 

 
City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stated that he believed the probationary period is part 
of the handbook.  
 
City Manager Jack L.McLean Jr. stated that typical practices are not to adjust 
probationary employees' pay.  
 
City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stated that once an employee completes probation, an 
adjustment is made back to the October 1 date.  
 
City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stated that only five employees are affected by the pay 
increase.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell offered a motion that all non-exempt employees, including 
probationary employees, receive a pay increase. After the raises are given, freeze all pay 
raises and all hiring unless approved by the Commission. The motion was seconded by 
Mayor Harris.  
 
Commissioner Sapp shared her concerns about just hired employees receiving pay 
increases.  
 
Mayor Harris stated that he desires to give probationary employees raises to keep them 
employed with the City.  
 
Mayor Harris shared his concerns with items voted on by the Commission and finding 
out that the City Manager does something different.  
 
Human Resources Director Ann Sherman stated that she hired a new employee, not on 
the list for the pay increase. 
 
Human Resources Director Ann Sherman stated that the City’s practice is that 
probationary employees receive pay increase backdated to October 1 and after passing 
probation. 
 
Commissioner Bass-Prieto expressed her concerns regarding interference in day-to-day 
operations.  
 
Commissioner Bass-Prieto stated that the Commission could not micromanage the City 
Manager.  
 
Commissioner Bass-Prieto requested the City Attorney Gary Roberts provide an opinion 
to Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell’s motion.  
 
Commissioner Bass-Prieto noted that the City is being set up for a bad experience.  
 
City Attorney Gary Roberts stated that the powers and duties of the City Manager are 
clear in Sec. 3.04 of the charter.  
 



Page 12 of 19 
 

City Attorney Gary Roberts read from Sec. 3.04 of the City’s charter, “ He shall employ 
or appoint all city employees.”  
 
City Attorney Gary Roberts noted that he understood the concerns of Mayor Pro Tem 
Dowdell. However, Commissioner Bass-Prieto’s comments are solid.  
 
City Attorney Gary Roberts cautioned the Commission on interference with day-to-day 
operations.  
 
City Attorney Gary Roberts stated that the City Manager needs to operate day-to-day 
operations consistent with human resources policies.  
 
Human Resources Director Ann Sherman stated that it is not in the City’s policies and 
procedures that probationary employees not receive a raise.  
 
Mayor Harris reiterated that the City Manager should have informed the Commission of 
the practice of probationary employees not entitled to the raise until passing probation.  
 
City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. referred to his October 22 email to the Commission 
notification of the probationary employee practice of human resources.  
 
City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stated that the Commission did not undertake 
employee raises until October 19.  
 
City Attorney Gary Roberts stated that the Commission is the fiduciaries of the City.  

Commissioner Vote 
Mayor Harris Yes 

Commissioner Sapp  No 
Commissioner Bass-Prieto     No 

Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell Yes 
Commissioner Canidate  Yes 

 
 

The Motion Carried 3 to 2. 

Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell reiterated his motion to freeze all hiring until it is brought back 
before the Commission.  

Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell again stated that the City Manager could hire but just bring 
back to the Commission.  

Commissioner Sapp requested an opinion from City Attorney on what person decides 
who gets hired.  

Commissioner Bass-Prieto asked if the motion is to freeze hiring or Commission 
approval. 

Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell stated, “Commission approval.”  



Page 13 of 19 
 

Commissioner Bass-Prieto stated that this motion requires the City Manager must get 
approval to hire police officers and fire personnel.  

Item #10: FEMA Category Z Funding  

Mayor Harris stated that City Manager Jack L.McLean emailed the Commission 
referencing $248,000 sent to the City.  

City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stated that the funds had been appropriated into the 
budget as reimbursement. 

Mayor Harris stated that how is money budgeted that the City had not received.  

Mayor Harris stated that he had no idea what Category Z was.  

City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stated that Category Z is a part of the work Rostan 
provides to the City.  

Mayor Harris stated that the email sent by the City Manager did not provide the 
background as to what the City is being reimbursed for.  

Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell requested that the finance director explain where the $248,000 
is located located in the budget.  

Finance Director Marcia Carty stated she placed the $248,000 in the budget last year. 

Finance Director Marcia Carty stated that she thought the City would receive the 
$248,000 during last year’s budget.  

Finance Director Marcia Carty stated that she could not confirm if the money was in the 
bank.  

Finance Director Marcia Carty stated that she budgeted $205,000 out of the $248,000 
for the fiscal year 2021-2022.  

Finance Director Marcia Carty stated that she’s researching whether the money would 
be treated as a receivable in the budget of 2020-2021 and will meet with the auditor 
next week. 

Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell asked how is money the City doesn’t have placed into the 
budget. 

Finance Director Marcia Carty stated that information received from the State allows 
the City to provide a budget projection for every line item.  

Finance Director Marcia Carty stated that the same approach is taken with FEMA funds.  

Finance Director Marcia Carty reiterated that budgeting is a projection.  

Finance Director Marcia Carty stated that she’s in consultation with the City’s 
consultant during budgeting. 

City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stated that Category Z is money the City paid upfront 
and is  being reimbursed.  



Page 14 of 19 
 

City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stated that due to deficiencies in the grants 
department, Category Z funding was delayed.  

City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stated that the deficiencies were cleared in order to 
receive funding.   

City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stated that he would provide by Friday to the 
Commission if the City had received the Category Z funding and identify which line item 
the funding was placed.  

Item #11: Fuel Adjustment   

City Manager Jack L.McLean Jr. stated that when gas prices go up, that cost is passed 
to the customer. 

City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stated that the City has no control over the gas price 
increase.  

City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stated that an educational program is forthcoming to 
educate the citizens on the fuel adjustment costs and how to lower the bill.   

Commissioner Sapp agreed that an educational program is needed that will inform 
residents on what the fuel adjustment rate is and how it is calculated.  

Commissioner Sapp requested that charts and graphics be added to the presentation 
and a workshop scheduled for citizens.  

Item #12: American Rescue Act  

Mayor Harris stated that he would like to discuss the American Rescue Act.  

Mayor Harris stated that he understood the Commission's request to workshop the item.  

Mayor Harris stated that the City received $1.7 million and will receive an additional 
$1.7 million. 

Mayor Harris stated that he desires to frame the workshop around: 

• Premium pay – employees working through the pandemic 
• Household assistance – relief from paying Hurricane Michael surcharge 
• Flagler street flooding and District One, stormwater drainage  
• Hardware for the police department 

Mayor Harris restated his motion from a previous meeting; $300,000 for premium pay, 
$500,000 for household assistance, $500,000 for Flagler street and District One 
stormwater drainage, and $140,000 for hardware for the police department. The 
remainder of $260,000 is to be determined by the Commission. Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell 
seconded the motion. 

Commissioner Canidate requested to schedule a date to workshop the American Rescue 
Act so that other Commissioners may submit their request(s) to fund specific projects 
or items.  



Page 15 of 19 
 

Commissioner Canidate stated that she researched and found several ways that the 
American Rescue Act could be used.  

Commissioner Canidate asked if the status of the IT position.  

City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stated that he’s waiting on a contract from John 
Thomas.  

City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. stated that James McKenzie is still providing IT 
services pro bono.  

Commissioner Bass-Prieto stated that she’s concerned about not having an opportunity 
to provide her suggestions on how the American Rescue funds could be used.   

Commissioner Bass-Prieto reiterated needing a workshop on the American Rescue Act.  

Commissioner Bass-Prieto stated that there are great opportunities on how the funds 
could be utilized. 

Mayor Harris noted that his recommendation is only a matter of framing the workshop.  

Commissioner Sapp agreed that a workshop is necessary so that every Commissioner 
can bring ideas to the table on utilizing these funds.  

City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. recommended Tuesday, November 16, for a workshop.  

Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell rescinded his second.  

Mayor Harris stated that he would like to see staff follow up on: 

• Premium pay – who qualifies 
• Household assistance – examples on the distribution from other municipalities.  
• Hardware/software for the police department. 
• Flagler street/district one storm ditch. 

 
Comments 
 
City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr.  
 

• City Hall is closed on November 11 and will reopen on November 12. 
• Public Works' annual clean-up begins on November 8 through November 19.  
• Usually, the second Commission meeting in November is canceled due to the 

Thanksgiving holiday, unless the Commission objects.  
• Seed grant submissions are to be brought back to the Commission in December 

and not November 9, as stated in the minutes.  
• The Christmas parade is scheduled for December 21 at 6 pm.    
• Will email to the Commission a list of proposed scheduled holiday festivities.  
• Asked Interim Building and Planning Director Charles Hayes to contact Leslie 

Steele on public relations for the holiday events.  
• Stated that the holiday festivities are a community-wide effort which includes 

Main Street and Parks and Recreation.   



Page 16 of 19 
 

Commission 

City Clerk Janice Shackelford-Clemons 

• No comments 

City Attorney Gary Roberts 

• Requested to add the sign ordinance to the upcoming workshop or special 
meeting.   

Commissioner Bass-Prieto 

• Thanked the police and utility departments for repairing a utility pole struck over 
the weekend.  

• Noted that there have been two individuals killed on King Street and car that 
struck a power pole. 

• Stated that speeding on King Street is a huge problem and needs to be addressed. 
Asked Police Chief Ashley for assistance in the speeding issue.  

• Provided an overview of her experience living in subsidized housing. Asked the 
Commission to come up with a plan on what affordable housing looks like for the 
City of Quincy.  

• Stated that there is a need for affordable housing in Quincy.  
• Invited everyone to Mistletoe Market on December 4. 
• Wished everyone a Happy Veteran’s Day. 

 
Commissioner Sapp 
 

• Welcomed Police Chief Ashley to the City.  
• Noted that each four of the meet and greet for Police Chief Ashley provided a good 

representation of the City.  
• Commended the agencies involved in returning a young lady home safely to her 

mother. Women to Women agency is providing services to this family.  
• Stated that the Women to Women organization funded through the seed grant 

initiative is working towards the mission set by the Commission.  
• Stated that Quincy needs housing. Asked the Commission to stop referencing 

Gadsden Arms during conversations in incorrect manners. The residents living 
in Gadsden Arms are not responsible for the conditions; the conditions of the 
apartments are from years of poor management and maintenance.  

• Stated that the Commission should hold apartment management accountable, 
which has not been the case for Gadsden Arms Apartments.  

Commissioner Canidate 

• Asked if the accident on Kings Street was related to a DUI.  
• Asked Chief Ashley how DUI breathalyzers are administered.  

Police Chief Ashley stated that a trained police officer could administer breathalyzers or 
can defer the observation of an individual to another police municipality.    



Page 17 of 19 
 

• Asked the city manager for the status of a response on a Facebook post on 
the seed grant application.  

Interim Building and Planning Director Charles Hayes stated that he is working on 
responding to the questions.  

Mayor Pro Tem Dowdell 

• Stated that District One’s Holloween event was a success.  
• Thanked the city manager and staff personnel for coming out to the haunted 

house.   
• Asked the city manager to follow up with Hattie Demus.  
• Welcomed Police Chief Ashley to the City. Looks forward to working with him. 

Mayor Harris  

• Apologize to Police Chief Ashley for not attending the meet and greet.  
• Stated to Police Chief Ashley through the city manager he would like to meet with 

him. 
• Stated that there is an issue with crime that needs addressing.  
• Reiterated Rolanda Jackson’s comments that it’s not working for the citizens. 

Stated that it’s not working for him as well.  
• Stated that he feels disrespected by the city manager that he didn’t set up a 

private meeting for each Commission with the new police chief before the public 
meet and greet. 

• Stated that he took no offense to the missing mayor comment. 
• Stated that there is a communication problem with the city manager.  
• There are some management issues that need to be addressed. 
• Time to deal with the management issue. 
• Asked the city manager for an update in contacting Mi Mi Robinson.  
• Noted the issue with an email thread regarding an IT issue. 
• Stated that the city manager was non-responsive during the IT issue.  
• Noted an email from Jim Southerland, referencing the city manager’s non-

response to meet with him.   
• Asked that the city manager’s contract be placed on the agenda during the first 

Commission meeting in December.  
• Stated that he would bring his concerns about the future of the city manager to 

the December meeting.  

City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr. responds to Mayor Harris’ comments: 

• Human Resources has set up a meeting with Mi Mi Robinson. 
• Stated that the email thread regarding the IT issue be shared with the 

Commission. 
• Stated that the clerk received an update from his executive assistant on the IT 

issue.  
• Stated that the mayor was aware of the IT problems and the timeframe given for 

resolution. 



Page 18 of 19 
 

• Stated that the mayor has not addressed his concern on fair treatment from an 
appointed official.  

• Stated that he texted Mr. Southerland back.  
•  Stated that he did not know that Mr. Southerland was waiting to speak with 

him.  
• Stated that he did not believe that he disrespected the Commission by moving 

forward with the meet and greet for Police Chief Ashley. 
• Stated that the mayor chose not to communicate. 
• Stated that a good  police chief was hired.  
• Stated to the mayor to do as he pleased in the December meeting. 
• Stated that he had done his job well and had not been disrespectful.  
• Stated that the mayor had disrespected a colleague sitting on the dais.  
• Stated that the mayor had disrespected him. 
• Stated that the mayor had not gone by the charter.  
• Asked that the December meeting be an open discussion about his future.   
• Asked what his charges are.  

Mayor Harris responses to City Manager Jack L. McLean Jr.: 

• Stated that the city manager is not telling the truth.  
• Stated that the city manager has not responded to several emails. 
• Stated that other Commissioners can express how they feel towards the mayor.  
• Stated that the city manager should bring his concerns to the December meeting.   

Comments from the Audience 

Rolanda Jackson, no address provided.  

• Stated that it is evident that there is a communication problem. 
• Stated that the Commission needs to work together.  
• Stated that the community is tired of the Commission coming to meetings 

unprepared.  
• Stated that the city manager should brief each Commissioner before the meeting. 
• Stated that the city manager and the Commission must work together. 
• Stated that there are too many workshops.  
• Would like to see more growth with the Commission. 
• Stated that change needs to be made. 
• Stated that the citizens need relief from the American Rescue Act. 
• The fighting needs to stop.  
• Stated that a group of citizens is still waiting for cameras to be installed since the 

August 6 meeting. 
• The Commission should work for the better of everyone.  

The adjournment was motioned by Mayor Harris and seconded by Commissioner Sapp 
at 9:50 pm. 

Please Note: The City Commission places the official copies of Commission Meeting 
Minutes on file with the City Clerk's Office upon approval.  



Page 19 of 19 
 

 
Submitted by Janice Shackelford Clemons, City Clerk 

 
 
APPROVED: 
 
___________________________ 
Ronte Harris, Mayor, and Presiding  
Officer of the City Commission and 
of the City of Quincy, Florida 

 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 

__________________________________________ 
Janice Shackelford Clemons, City Clerk per 
Clerk of the of Quincy, Florida 
Clerk of the City Commission thereof 
 











Law Offices of 
GARY A. ROBERTS & ASSOCIATES, LLC 

A Limited Liability Company 

Gary A. Roberts, Esq.        Tiffani N. Brown, Esq.  
Municipal Law         Criminal Defense  
Personal Injury         Family Law  
Wrongful Death         Personal Injury   
Criminal Defense         Contract Disputes  
                   
E-mail: Garyr@garyrobertslaw.com                         E-mail: Tiffani@garyrobertslaw.com 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

130 Salem Court • Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
Telephone: 850-513-0505 • Fax: 850-513-0318 

 

 

 

City of Quincy, City Hall  
404 West Jefferson Street  

Quincy, Florida 32351  
 

RE: LEGAL OPINION ON CITY COMMISSIONER’S MOTION TO FREEZE 

PAY AND HIRING BY THE CITY MANAGER 
 

Dear Commissioners:  
  
At the November 9, 2021, City Commission meeting, a motion was made and 

passed by the City Commissioners, by a 3-2 vote, to prohibit the City Manager 
from hiring new employees and to freeze all pay raises. As such, I was asked if 
the stated motion caused the Commissioners to interfere with the day-to-day 

activities of the City Manager as described in the Charter. The Charter states 
in part:  

 
Sec. 2.04. - Prohibitions.  
 

(c)  Interference with administration. Except for the purpose of inquiries 
under section 2.15, the commission or its members shall deal with city 
officers and employees who are subject to the direction and supervision 
of the city manager solely through the city manager, and neither the 
commission nor its members shall give orders to any such officer or 
employee, either publicly or privately. Violation of this provision shall 
constitute a misdemeanor to be prosecuted and punished as provided by 
state law. 

 
The Charter, as currently written, prohibits the interference of the day-to-day 

activities/administration of the City Manager by the City Commission. 
Therefore, the motion places the City Commission as a de facto City Manager 
in violation of the Sec. 2.04, as freezing hiring and pay raises infringes on the 

City Manager’s ability to carry out his duties and responsibilities under the 
Charter.  In particular: 

  
Sec. 3.04. - Powers and duties of the city manager.  
 

The city manager shall be the chief administrative officer of the city. He 
shall be responsible to the commission for the administration of all city 

mailto:Garyr@garyrobertslaw.com
mailto:Tiffani@garyrobertslaw.com


 

 

130 Salem Court • Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
Telephone: 850-513-0505 • Fax: 850-513-0318 

 

affairs placed in his charge by or under this charter. He shall have the 
following powers and duties:  

(1) He shall employ or appoint all city employees and appointive 
administrative officers provided for by or under this charter, except as 
otherwise provided by law, this charter, or rules adopted by the 
commission pursuant to this charter. All such employees shall serve at 
the pleasure of the city manager….  

Under the powers and duty of the City Manager, the Charter states “he shall 
employ or appoint all city employees…”  This language is unambiguous 
and clearly means the City Manager has power to hire and pay employees of 

the City of Quincy at his discretion and this duty cannot be usurped by the 
City Commission by motion, only by charter amendment. The proper direction 

from this point forward is to rescind the motion.  
 
Respectfully yours, 

  
GARY A. ROBERTS & ASSOCIATES, LLC  

 
Gary A. Roberts, Esq. 

 

Gary A. Roberts, Esq. 
City Attorney  

 



1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 1417-2021 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA, SETTLING 
A LAWSUIT FILED BY THE CITY MANAGER AND PROVIDING 
FOR COMPLIANCE WITH LAW 
  
WHEREAS, on November 9, 2021, the City Commissioners voted 3-2, to 

prohibit the City Manager from hiring new employees and to freeze all pay 
raises unless it’s brought before the City Commission; and, 

WHEREAS, on November 10, the City Attorney wrote an opinion letter 
that stated the November 9, 2021, vote infringed upon the City Manager’s 
powers and duties under the charter of the City of Quincy; and,  

WHEREAS, on November 15, 2021, the City Manager filed a lawsuit in 
the Circuit Court of Gadsden County, seeking a declaratory judgment and 
injunction against the City of Quincy pursuant to the November 9, 2021, vote 
restricting his authority; and,   

WHEREAS, on November 17, 2021, a court hearing was conducted on 
the City Manager’s motion and the court encouraged the parties to resolve this 
matter at the City Commission level in lieu of judicial intervention in City 
matters; and, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF QUINCY, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section I. The City Commission for the City of Quincy, Florida, rescinds 
its 3-2 vote on November 9, 2021, and allows the City Manager to perform his 
duties and responsibilities as outlined in the City Charter, in particular, 
sections 2.04 and 3.04. 

Section II. The City Commission for the City of Quincy adopts the 
narrative description set forth above and will comply with its Charter.  

         PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED by the City Commission of the City of 
Quincy, Florida this ___________ day of November 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

2 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By:______________________________ 
Name: GARY A. ROBERTS  
Title:  City Attorney 

CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
 
 
By:________________________________ 
Name: RONTE R. HARRIS 
Title:  Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
By:_________________________________ 
Name: JANICE SHACKLEFORD 
Title:  City Clerk 

 
  

 






































	1416-2021 Christmas Parade Road Closure
	Agenda Cover Sheet November 23 2021 COMMISSION MEETING Amended
	Agenda Cover Sheet November 23 2021 COMMISSION MEETING
	Table of Contents 11232021 AMENDED
	2021-11-9 Final Regular Commission Minutes
	1417-2021 Draft Resolution Settling Law Suit with City Manager 11232021
	Opinion on Commission's Motion Regarding Hiring and Pay Freeze 
	1417-2021 Draft Resolution Settling Law Suit with City Manager 11232021

	Toys for Tots Request for Funding
	Revenues and Unfunded Items


